

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Contents

Mission Statement	4
Mission Statement: Policy and Procedures.....	4
Advisory Council: Not Referenced in the By-Laws	11
Advisory Council: Policy and Procedure.....	11
Annual Dues	6
Articles of Incorporation	23
Articles of Incorporation: Policy and Procedure.....	23
Books and Records	22
Books and Records: Policy and Procedure.....	23
By-laws	23
Bylaws: Policy and Procedure.....	23
Periodic Reviews: Policy and Procedure.....	20
Committee Formation	16
Committee Formation: Policy and Procedure.....	16
Confidentiality	12
Confidentiality: Policy and Procedure.....	12
Conflict of Interest and Compensation	16
Conflict of Interest and Compensation: Policy and Procedure.....	17
Definitions.....	17
Procedures.....	17
Addressing the Conflict of Interest.....	18
Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy.....	18
Compensation	19
Compensation: Policy and Procedure.....	20
Directors	9
Directors: Policy and Procedures.....	9
Dissolution	23
Dissolution: Policy and Procedure.....	23
Election of Directors	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Election of Directors: Policy and Procedure.....	14

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Expenses	21
Expenses: Policy and Procedure	21
Forfeiture of a Director’s Seat	10
Forfeiture of a Director’s Seat: Policy and Procedure	11
General Management of OEVA	4
General Management: No Policy and Procedure statement written	4
Indemnification	21
Indemnification: Policy and Procedure	21
Informal Action by Directors	11
Informal Action by Directors: Policy and Procedure	11
Insurance	22
Insurance: Policy and Procedure	22
Membership	4
Memberships: Policy and Procedures	5
Application.....	5
Resignation and Termination.....	5
Categories of Membership:.....	5
Directors:	5
General Member:	5
Associate Member.....	5
Annual Dues: Policy and Procedures.....	6
Meetings, times, and locations	6
Meetings, times, and locations: Policy and Procedure	7
Annual membership meetings	7
Annual Board of Directors meetings	7
Special meetings.....	7
Notice	7
Meetings held other than in person.....	7
Membership Voting	8
Membership Voting: Policy and Procedure.....	8
Number, Tenure, Qualifications and Requirements of Directors	9
Qualifications and Requirements of Directors: Policy and Procedure	9

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Old Englewood Village Association Inc. (OEVA)	24
Officers	12
Officers: Policy and Procedure	13
President.....	13
Vice-President.....	13
Secretary.....	14
Treasurer	14
Parliamentary Procedure	8
Parliamentary Procedure: Policy and Procedure	8
Quorum	7
Quorum: Policy and Procedure	7
Records of Proceedings	18
Records of Proceedings: Policy and Procedure	19
Removal from Office	11
Removal from Office: Policy and Procedure	12
Removal of an Officer	14
Removal of Officer: Policy and Procedure.....	15
Resignations	12
Resignations: Policy and Procedure	12
Tax Exempt Status	24
Terms of office	9
Use of Outside Experts: By-Laws	21
Use of Outside Experts: Policy and Procedure	21
Vacancies	16
Vacancies: Policy and Procedure	16

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Mission Statement

Article II: Section 1: The purpose of OEVA is to facilitate the civil betterment of the greater Old Englewood Village neighborhood (as defined in Article I Section 3 above) through community revitalization and beautification including (but not limited to) efforts to enhance economic, business, civic, social, cultural, and recreational services that will benefit businesses and residents of the neighborhood (and surrounding communities and neighborhoods); and for such other civic, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes as OEVA may from time to time deem appropriate, consistent with the corporation's tax exempt status (see Article VII at pages 6-7 infra concerning tax status).

Mission Statement: Policy and Procedures

The purpose of the Association is to facilitate the Englewood Village Neighborhood of Sarasota County Florida in community revitalization and beautification through efforts which include economic, business, civic, social, cultural, and recreational services that will benefit the residents, the surrounding communities and neighborhoods; and for such other charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purpose as the Board of Directors may deem appropriate.

General Management of OEVA

Article IV: Section 1: The administration and management of OEVA shall be vested in the Board of Directors and its Officers. All Officers and Directors shall have a fiduciary relationship to its members. OEVA shall maintain such accounts and records as are necessary and prudent in accordance with good business standards. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves. OEVA, through its Officers and Directors, shall maintain its status as a not for profit corporation under the laws of the State of Florida and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code. The Officers and Directors, in performance of their duties, shall cause to be maintained a record of all receipts and expenditures, and an account reflecting the name, address and current membership status of each Member.

General Management: No Policy and Procedure statement written

Membership

Article III: Section 1: All individuals, persons, corporations, partnerships, or other entities with an interest in the purposes of this corporation are eligible for membership in OEVA, subject to the restrictions and requirements set forth in Section 5 of this Article III. Membership shall be obtained by an eligible applicant who submits an application for membership on a form (approved by the Board of Directors) and who subscribes to the mission and goals of OEVA as stated in the application and these by-laws, together with the payment of any such initiation fee, minimum donation or annual dues as shall be determined, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. A failure to pay the required amount when the same shall be due shall result in the termination of membership in the organization.

Article III: Section 5: The Board of Directors may create different levels or categories of membership and the conditions and rights for Members in each category, including voting and non-voting memberships, associate memberships, and memberships restricting eligibility to serve as a Director, Officer, and on a committee, or in some other capacity for OEVA. A Member may be expelled for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

procedures adopted by the Board of Directors providing for expulsion of a Member, or re-designation of a Member's status with OEVA. An Officer or Director expelled pursuant to this section, or whose status as a Member has been re-designated as a Non-Voting Member, shall thereby be removed from office and that vacancy filled as provided in Article IV Section 6 (page 3).

Memberships: Policy and Procedures

Application for membership is available on the www.EngelwoodFL.org web site.

Resignation and Termination: Any member may resign by filing a written resignation with the Secretary. Resignation shall not relieve a member of unpaid dues, or other charges previously accrued. A member can have their membership terminated by a majority vote of the Board. The Board can waive unpaid dues or charges by majority vote.

Categories of Membership:

Directors:

1. Is eligible to be an Officer of the Board.
2. Has full nominating and voting rights, including the annual election of officers, at all meetings.
3. Has the right to advertise on the association website and social media as designated.
4. Has annual membership dues requirements at the designated amount.
5. Has the right to serve on committees.
6. Should attend the Board meetings, per the attendance rules established.

General Member:

1. Is eligible to be a Director / Officer of the Board after one year of membership.
2. Has full nominating and voting rights for election of Directors annually.
3. Has the right to advertise on the association website and social media as designated.
4. Has annual membership dues requirements at the designated amount.
5. Has the right to serve on committees.
6. Should attend a majority of the OEVA public meetings.

Associate Member.

1. Is not eligible to be a Director / Officer of the Board.
2. Has no nominating and voting rights at any meeting.
3. Has no right to advertise on the association website and social media.
4. Has no annual membership dues requirements.
5. Has the right to serve on committees.
6. Is welcome to attend any OEVA public meeting.

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Annual Dues

Article III: Section 1: All individuals, persons, corporations, partnerships, or other entities with an interest in the purposes of this corporation are eligible for membership in OEVA, subject to the restrictions and requirements set forth in Section 5 of this Article III. Membership shall be obtained by an eligible applicant who submits an application for membership on a form (approved by the Board of Directors) and who subscribes to the mission and goals of OEVA as stated in the application and these by-laws, together with the payment of any such initiation fee, minimum donation or annual dues as shall be determined, from time to time, by the Board of Directors. A failure to pay the required amount when the same shall be due shall result in the termination of membership in the organization.

Annual Dues: Policy and Procedures

The amount required for annual dues shall be \$100 unless changed by a majority vote of the Directors at an annual meeting. Any delinquent Member will be subject to his or her membership being suspended or terminated by a majority vote of the Board of Directors. Annual Dues dates, notifications, and payments are automated through the web site. No action shall be taken to suspend or terminate a paying Member for nonpayment of disputed amounts until the accuracy of the amount owed has been confirmed.

Meetings, times, and locations

Article III: Section 2: An Annual Meeting of OEVA Members shall be held in January of each year (unless circumstances require it to be held in a different month in any given year) on a date and time as scheduled by the Board of Directors. The meeting is to be held at a place in Southwest Florida as described in the notice of the meeting. Notice of the Annual Meeting newsletter or website, which shall be published at least 7 days prior to the meeting. At the meeting OEVA Members shall elect Directors to fill any available vacancies on the Board to serve a full three-year term, and/or to fill unexpired terms of Directors that have become vacant by reason of resignation, death, or other cause. Such Directors shall be duly charged with carrying out the business of OEVA on behalf of the corporation and the Members.

Article III: Section 3: At any meeting of OEVA, an OEVA Member shall be entitled to one vote (if eligible to vote). Where multiple owners of a membership are eligible to vote, they shall have only one composite vote. The existence and extent of the voting rights of a Member shall be as determined by rules established by the Board of Directors or its designee. A quorum at the Annual Meeting (or any other meeting) of OEVA Members shall consist of a majority of the OEVA membership present and voting (including those voting by proxy) but in no event shall be less than five (5) Members.

Article III: Section 4: A special meeting of OEVA may be called at any time by the President, Vice President, a majority of the Directors, or by 10 percent of the voting Members. Notice of such meeting shall indicate the subject matter to be considered and otherwise shall be made in the same manner as provided in this Article III, Section 2.

Article IV: Section 3: Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held monthly on such dates as may be fixed from time to time by the OEVA Board. Notice of all annual, regular or special meetings of the Board shall be made as provided in Article III, Section 2 (pages 1-2). Meetings of the Board shall be held at such place or places in Southwest Florida as may be described in the notice of the meeting as determined by the Board.

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Article IV: Section 7: At the Annual Meeting of OEVA (see Article III, Section 2), the President, Vice President or a designated Officer or Director shall submit a report to the Members as to the business transacted during the preceding year, a budget for the upcoming year, a report of the general financial condition of OEVA, and other pertinent information.

Meetings, times, and locations: Policy and Procedure

General meetings of the members shall be held monthly, at a time and place designated by the Board.

Annual membership meetings shall take place in the month of January, the specific date, time, and location of which will be designated by the Board.

Annual Board of Directors meetings shall be held each calendar year and at a location designated by the Board of Directors. This Annual Meeting of the Board shall normally occur on the same day and immediately following the Annual Meeting of the Membership. At the Annual Meeting of the Board, the Directors shall elect Officers with motions, seconds, debate and by majority vote. Annual Membership and Annual Board of Director meetings can be combined.

Special meetings may be called by the President, or a simple majority of the Board of Directors. A petition signed by twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the General or Associate members, or any combination thereof, may also call a special meeting. The request shall state the date, time, place and purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting and allow for a reasonable notice period.

Notice of each Regular or Annual meeting shall be given to each voting Member, by electronic mail, social media, website posting, telephone, facsimile, or by written notice not less than (7) days prior to the meeting. Notice of any Special Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given at least (24) hours in advance of the meeting. Any Director may waive notice of any meeting. The attendance of a Director at any meeting shall constitute a waiver of notice of such meeting, except where a Director attends a meeting for the express purpose of objecting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any regular meeting of the Board of Directors need be specified in the notice or waiver of notice of such meeting, unless specifically required by law or by these bylaws.

Meetings held other than in person. Members of the Board or any committee may participate in a meeting of the Board or committee by conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation shall constitute presence in person at the meeting.

Quorum

Article IV: Section 4: Attendance of a majority of the Board at any meeting (including those voting by proxy) shall be necessary to constitute a quorum and the act of a majority of Directors present at any such meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors (and an act of OEVA).

Quorum: Policy and Procedure

Except as otherwise provided by law or in these Bylaws, at all Board meetings a simple majority shall

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The vote of a majority of the Members present and Members represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting and at all Regular Meetings at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Members. The vote of a majority of the Directors present and Directors represented by proxy at a Board meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board. A majority of the Directors' present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any meeting to another place, date and time.

The presence, in person, of a majority of current members of the Board of Directors shall be necessary at any meeting to constitute a quorum to transact business, but a lesser number shall have power to adjourn to a specified later date without notice. The act of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be the act of the Board of Directors, unless the act of a greater number is required by law or by these bylaws.

Membership Voting

Article III: Section 3: At any meeting of OEVA, an OEVA Member shall be entitled to one vote (if eligible to vote). Where multiple owners of a membership are eligible to vote, they shall have only one composite vote. The existence and extent of the voting rights of a Member shall be as determined by rules established by the Board of Directors or its designee. A quorum at the Annual Meeting (or any other meeting) of OEVA Members shall consist of a majority of the OEVA membership present and voting (including those voting by proxy) but in no event shall be less than five (5) Members.

Membership Voting: Policy and Procedure

All issues to be voted on shall be decided by a simple majority of those with voting privileges present at the meeting in which the vote takes place. A voting Member may cast their vote by submitting a written proxy to another voting Member who will attend the meeting, vote by proxy, or vote in person.

Parliamentary Procedure

Article IV: Section 14: The Board of Directors may hold meetings by telephone or video teleconferencing and may take action by unanimous written consent in lieu of a meeting, vote by proxy, or by such other methods pursuant to rules adopted by the Board. So far as is practicable, meetings may be governed in substantial conformity to Roberts Rules of Order.

Parliamentary Procedure: Policy and Procedure

Any question concerning parliamentary procedure at meetings shall be determined by the President by reference to Robert's Rules of Order. In matters of routine business, the Presiding Officer may use instead of Motions, Seconds, and Voting, the term "If there are no objections, the... (minutes, reports, etc.) will be accepted as presented."

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Terms of office

Seat #1: Nancy McCune:	Terms out in Jan. 2021	Elected in 2019
Seat #2: Les Bernstein:	Terms out in Jan. 2021	Filled Bob's seat, elected 2019
Seat #3: John Watson:	Terms out in Jan. 2021	Filled Brains seat, elected in 2019
Seat #4: Evelyn Dales:	Terms out in Jan. 2022	Filled Maria seat, elected 2020
Seat #5: Todd Tracy:	Terms out in Jan. 2022	Elected in 2020
Seat #6: Robert Reil:	Terms out in Jan. 2022	Filled Jean's seat, elected in 2020
Seat #7: Eric Peterson:	Terms out in Jan. 2023	Filled Wendy's seat, elected 2020
Seat #8: Open:	Not Established	(by motion his term was extended)
Seat #9: Open:	Not Established	(to balance the rotation.....)

Directors

Article IV: Section 1: The administration and management of OEVA shall be vested in the Board of Directors and its Officers. All Officers and Directors shall have a fiduciary relationship to its members. OEVA shall maintain such accounts and records as are necessary and prudent in accordance with good business standards. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves. OEVA, through its Officers and Directors, shall maintain its status as a not for profit corporation under the laws of the State of Florida and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code. The Officers and Directors, in performance of their duties, shall cause to be maintained a record of all receipts and expenditures, and an account reflecting the name, address and current membership status of each Member.

Directors: Policy and Procedures

The Board of Directors shall have control of and be responsible for the management of the affairs and property of the Association.

Number, Tenure, Qualifications and Requirements of Directors

Article IV: Section 2: The business of OEVA shall be conducted and directed by the Board of Directors (Board), who shall be Members in good standing elected by OEVA Members at the Annual Meeting (or appointed as provided in these By-Laws). The number of Directors shall be fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors and shall consist of an odd number of Directors of no less than three (3) and no more than fifteen (15).

Article IV: Section 8: Members of the Board of Directors shall be elected for a term of three (3) years and may serve a maximum of two consecutive terms, before becoming eligible to serve on the Board after a minimum of a one (1) year absence. The terms of Directors shall be staggered such that, so much as is possible, the terms of Directors constituting approximately one-third of the Board shall expire at each Annual Meeting. The terms and expiration of terms, number of Directors, eligibility, and election of new or replacement Directors shall be as provided by rules and procedures adopted by the Board.

Qualifications and Requirements of Directors: Policy and Procedure

The number of Directors shall be fixed from time-to-time by the Directors but shall consist of no less than three (3) nor more than fifteen (15) including the following officers: the President, the Vice-

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

President, the Secretary, and the Treasurer. The Board also may elect or appoint a Chairman of the Board of Directors, one or more additional Vice Presidents (any of whom may be designated as Executive Vice Presidents or otherwise), and any other Officers it deems necessary or desirable for the conduct of the business of the Association, each of whom shall have such powers and duties as the Board determines.

Directors shall remain current with their dues and attend as many meetings as possible. Missing three (3), consecutive Board meetings will require a board conversation on the issue. "In Good Standing", includes one calendar year or more of paid dues as a General Member, prior to any eligibility to stand for a Directorship. Directors shall, upon election, immediately enter upon the performance of their duties and shall continue in office until their successors shall be duly elected and qualified. No vote on new members of the Board of Directors, Committee, or Advisory Council, shall be held unless a quorum of the Board of Directors is present.

At the conclusion of their initial term, members of the Board of Directors may serve one additional three-year term. All Directors, Committee or Advisory Council officers may only serve for two (2) consecutive terms. Their terms shall be staggered so that at the time of each Annual Meeting, the terms of approximately one-third (1/3) of all members of the Board of Directors shall expire. Any term of office, served, serving, or expiring, of less than three (3) years established prior to the July 29th 2020 adoption of the By-Laws, shall not be considered as one of the two (2), three (3), year terms of office allowed.

No two (2) members of the Board of Directors related by blood or marriage or domestic partnership within the second degree of consanguinity or affinity may serve on the Board of Directors at the same time. No two (2) members of the same Business or Organization may serve on the Board of Directors at the same time.

Directors should: Attend all meetings. Participate on at least one committee or task force. Participate in the review of the OEVA's mission, strategic plan, and annual performance, and help develop next years plans. Read the materials sent to the Board and come prepared to Board and committee meetings. Help solicit other members to the organization. Work to help create a vibrant community. Pledge to actively work only towards those decisions and solutions and are in Old Englewood Village's best interests.

Forfeiture of a Director's Seat

Article III: Section 5: An Officer or Director expelled pursuant to this sections, or whose status as a Member has been re-designated as a Non-Voting Members, shall thereby be removed from office and that vacancy filled as provided in Article IV: Section 6.

Article IV: Section 5: The Board of Directors shall elect the Officers of OEVA who shall serve without compensation. An Officer or Director may be removed from office for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Board providing for their removal, and/or expulsion of them as provided in Article III Section 5 (page 2).

Article IV: Section 6: Vacancies on the Board of Directors through resignation, removal from office, death or disability may be filled by majority vote of the remaining members of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board, or by the Members as provided in Article III Section 2 (page 1-2).

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Forfeiture of a Director's Seat: Policy and Procedure

Upon appropriate Board action, in accordance with the By-Laws, the Secretary shall notify the Director in writing that his or her seat has been declared forfeited and vacant.

Informal Action by Directors

Article VII: Section 4: No part of OEVA's net earnings shall inure to any member or director. OEVA is a tax-exempt organization provided by the Federal Tax Law or as may be hereafter amended. Any provision of these By-Laws which would cause OEVA not to continue to qualify for such tax-exempt status shall be null and void and shall yield to the overriding intention herein expressed. In all respects, the Officers and Directors of OEVA shall take care to avoid transactions and conduct that may jeopardize its tax-exempt status, or cause OEVA to incur liability for excise or other taxes for engaging in non-exempt transactions.

Informal Action by Directors: Policy and Procedure

Any action required by law to be taken at a meeting of the Directors, or any action which may be taken at a meeting of Directors, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by two-thirds (2/3) of all of the Directors following notice of the intended action to all members of the Board of Directors.

Advisory Council: Not Referenced in the By-Laws

Advisory Council: Policy and Procedure

An Advisory Council may be created whose members shall be elected by the members of the Board of Directors annually but who shall have no duties, voting privileges, nor obligations for attendance at regular meetings of the Board. Advisory Council members may attend said meetings at the invitation of a member of the Board of Directors. Members of the Advisory Council shall possess the desire to serve the community and support the work of the Association by providing expertise and professional knowledge. Members of the Advisory Council shall comply with the confidentiality policy set forth herein and shall sign a confidentiality agreement consistent therewith upon being voted onto and accepting appointment to the Advisory Council.

Removal from Office

Article IV: Section 5: The Board of Directors shall elect the Officers of OEVA who shall serve without compensation. An Officer or Director may be removed from office for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Board providing for their removal, and/or expulsion of them as provided in Article III Section 5 (page 2).

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Removal from Office: Policy and Procedure

Any member of the Board of Directors or members of the Advisory Council may be removed with or without cause, at any time, by vote of three-quarters (3/4) of the members of the Board of Directors if in their judgment the best interest of the Association would be served thereby. Each member of the Board of Directors must receive written notice of the proposed removal at least ten (10) days in advance of the proposed action.

Resignations

Article IV: Section 6: Vacancies on the Board of Directors through resignation, removal from office, death or disability may be filled by majority vote of the remaining members of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board, or by the Members as provided in Article III Section 2.

Resignations: Policy and Procedure

Any Director may resign as a Director at any time by giving written or verbal notice of his or her resignation to the Secretary or the Board of Directors. A resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein or, if the time when it shall become effective is not specified therein, immediately upon its receipt, and unless otherwise specified therein, the acceptance of a resignation shall not be necessary to make it effective.

Confidentiality

Article VI: Section 2, OEVA shall disclose financial and other records, information and data to the extent required by state and federal law, and shall develop and maintain Privacy Policies and Transparency Policies consistent with law and best practices applicable to its industry.

Confidentiality: Policy and Procedure

Directors shall not discuss or disclose information about the Association or its activities to any person or entity unless such information is already a matter of public knowledge, such person or entity has a need to know, or the disclosure of such information is in furtherance of the Associations' purposes, or can reasonably be expected to benefit the Association. Directors shall use discretion and good business judgment in discussing the affairs of the Association with third parties. Without limiting the foregoing, Directors may discuss upcoming fundraisers and the purposes and functions of the Association, including but not limited to accounts on deposit in financial institutions. Each Director shall execute a confidentiality agreement consistent herewith upon being voted onto and accepting appointment to the Board of Directors.

Officers

Article V: Section 1: OEVA shall have a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, and a Treasurer. Officers of OEVA shall serve at the pleasure of the Board and shall serve without compensation. They shall be chosen by the Board of Directors and shall hold their offices from time to time and shall be elected or re-elected at any meeting of the Board of Directors. OEVA may have more than one (1) Vice President, Assistant Secretaries, or Assistant Treasurers and such other officers and agents as deemed necessary. Any person may hold two (2) or more offices, except that the President shall not also be the Vice President, Secretary or Assistant Secretary of OEVA at

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

the same time. No person shall be eligible to serve as President after he or she has served as President for three consecutive years (but may be reappointed after no less than a one-year absence).

Article 5: Section 2: The President, or in the President's absence, the Vice President of OEVA, shall preside at all Annual Meetings of OEVA, and at meetings of the Board of Directors, unless the Board selects a Chairperson to fulfill those duties instead. The President shall have general supervision over the affairs of OEVA and over other Officers, and in the President's absence or disability; these duties shall be performed by the Vice President, Secretary or Treasurer in that respective order. Nothing in this section shall prevent the Board from engaging the services of an Executive Director or other qualified person, to fulfill some of all of the executive functions of the President, or any other officer.

Article 5: Section 3: The Secretary shall attend and keep the minutes of all meetings. The Secretary shall have charge of OEVA records and papers and shall perform all other duties normally incident to such office. In the absence or disability of the Secretary, the duties may be performed by the Executive Assistant, Assistant Secretary or another officer or director.

Article 5: Section 4: The Treasurer shall have custody of the funds of OEVA and shall keep regular books and accounts. The Treasurer shall have custody of vouchers, receipts, records and other papers normally incident to such office or assign them to be kept with the bookkeeper or accountant. In the absence or disability of the Treasurer, the duties may be performed by an Assistant Treasurer or another officer or director.

Article 5: Section 5: Each of the officers above described shall, in addition to the powers and duties conferred upon them herein, have all the powers, authorities, and responsibilities as are designated to officers of a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida.

Officers: Policy and Procedure

The officers of the Board of Directors shall be the President, Vice-President, Secretary and Treasurer. All officers must have the status of active members of the Board.

President: The President shall preside at all meetings of the membership. The President shall have the following duties:

1. Preside at all meetings of the Executive Committee.
2. Have general and active management of the business of the Board.
3. See that all orders and resolutions of the Board are brought to the Board.
4. Attend and direct all other officers of this Association and monitor their performance.
5. Submit an annual report to the membership on all matters that affect the Association.
6. Supervise and monitor all standing committees.
7. Delegate any duties as necessary and approved by the Board.

Vice-President: The Vice-President shall be vested with all the powers and shall perform all the duties of the President during the absence of the latter. The Vice-President shall also have the following duties:

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

1. Have the duty of chairing committees and other duties as determined by the Board.

Secretary: The Secretary shall attend the meetings of the Board, the Executive Committee, Committees and Membership meeting if not so delegated. The Secretary shall have the following duties:

1. Record all votes and minutes of all proceedings.
2. Organize and arrange all the meetings of the Assoc.
3. Send membership notices and arrange all meetings.
4. Perform all official correspondence and maintain the Assoc. records.
5. Delegate any duties as necessary and approved by the Board.

Treasurer: The Treasurer shall have the following duties:

1. Submit for approval a monthly and annual financial report and manage the budgets.
2. Assist in direct audits of the funds of the Association using generally accepted accounting principles.
3. Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by the Board or the President.
4. Manage all checkbooks, bank accounts, debit, and credit cards.
5. Delegate any duties as necessary and approved by the Board.

Election of Directors:

Article IV: SECTION 5: The Board of Directors shall elect the Officers of OEVA who shall serve without compensation. An Officer or Director may be removed from office for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Board providing for their removal, and/or expulsion of them as provided in Article III Section 5 (page 2).

Election of Directors: Policy and Procedure

With an abundance of caution and the health of our members of primary importance we will be having a by mail/ virtual election this year; 2020. Future elections may vary following the recommendations of the Nominating Committee.

On or about, November 15, 2020, a list of General Members names who are eligible and have been contacted and consent to be nominated will be circulated to the General Members. If a name does not appear on this list it is an indicator that that person has declined to be nominated. If a person who has declined to be nominated is nominated their name will not be included in the nomination list.

Only General Members, in good standing, with their annual dues paid and having been a General Member for the previous calendar year, can be nominated for an open Director seat. General Members will be able to nominate one person from the provided list for each open seat. After counting and totaling the nominations, the top numerically ranked three nominees will officially be nominated for the open seats. No nominee should appear on the ballot more than once. Nominations are to be returned by e-mail to OEVA following the e-mail address provided. Nomination will not be accepted past Nov. 30th., 5:00 pm.

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Voting:

Each nominee will be asked to submit in writing their qualifications to be a director so those written qualifications can be included on the ballot or notification. Vote@EnglewoodFL.org is the only email address which will accept nominations.

On or about, Dec.10, the selected list of nominees will be circulated back to the General Members, via e-mail, or other means, and the General Members will be asked to select one name per open Director seat, from the nominees list.

You may e-mail or mail your notice or ballot via US Mail to:

Old Englewood Village Association
1811 Englewood Rd #186
Englewood, FL 34223

On the date of the Annual Meeting, which will be announced, the Board, in a virtual, physical or combination thereof, meeting will open and count the ballots. Notice of the virtual meeting will be circulated in advance.

Here are some things to consider before submitting a nomination or voting: A Director should:

- 1) Chair at least one board committee or task force.
- 2) Participate in the review of the OEVA's mission, strategic plan, and annual performance.
- 3) Help develop next year's plans.
- 4) Read the materials sent to the board and come prepared to board and committee meetings.
- 5) Help solicit other members to the organization.
- 6) Work to help create a vibrant community.
- 7) Actively develop plans and solutions that are in Old Englewood Village's best interests.

Removal of an Officer

Article III: SECTION 5: The Board of Directors shall elect the Officers of OEVA who shall serve without compensation. An Officer or Director may be removed from office for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Board providing for their removal, and/or expulsion of them as provided in Article III Section 5.

Removal of Officer: Policy and Procedure

The Board with the concurrence of three- quarters (3/4) of the members voting at the meeting may remove any officer of the Board of Directors and elect a successor for the unexpired term. No officer of the Board of Directors shall be expelled without an opportunity to be heard and notice of such motion of expulsion shall be given to the member in writing ten (10) days prior to the meeting at which motion shall be presented, setting forth the reasons of the Board for such expulsion.

Missing of a three (3) consecutive meetings will automatically trigger a triggering review of the Director.

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Vacancies

Article 4: Section 6: Vacancies on the Board of Directors through resignation, removal from office, death or disability may be filled by majority vote of the remaining members of the Board at any regular or special meeting of the Board, or by the Members as provided in Article III Section 2.

Vacancies: Policy and Procedure

When vacancies occur between annual meetings, candidates should be interviewed and elected per Article 4, section 6. The persons so elected shall fill the unexpired term of the seat filled.

Committee Formation

Article IV, Section 9: The Board by majority vote may establish (or abolish) committees to perform such functions as the board shall determine to be necessary and/or advisable for the management of OEVA, as stated in the commission issued by the Board forming the committee.

The committees shall be denominated as standing or ad hoc, the members of which shall be appointed by the Board on the recommendation of the President. The initial standing committees shall be:

(A) Executive Committee. Comprised of the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer, which may exercise the powers of the Board (except for the power to amend these By-Laws), subject to the direction and control of the full Board, in the intervals between regular meetings of the Board.

(B) Finance Committee. Chaired by the Treasurer, this committee is to have no fewer than 3 members and is responsible for reviewing and developing fiscal procedures, fundraising plans, financial statements, and the annual budget.

(C) Governance Committee. Chaired by a Director, and consisting of general Members as appointed pursuant to the rules of the Board, this committee recruits applications for any open seat on the Board, verifies the eligibility of the applicant to so serve, provides a slate of candidates to be elected at the Annual Meeting (or fill vacancies) and otherwise fulfills the duties of a nominating committee, or such other duties and tasks of good governance as assigned to it by the Board.

(D) Membership Committee. Chaired by a Director, and consisting of general Members as appointed pursuant to the rules of the Board, this committee assists the Board in establishing membership types and levels, and otherwise enforcing Article III Sections 1 and 5, soliciting new members and processing membership applications, and otherwise fulfills such other duties and tasks as assigned to it by the Board, towards developing a vibrant constituency of OEVA Members.

Committee Formation: Policy and Procedure

The Board may create additional committees as needed, such as Fundraising, Public Relations, Events Marketing, etc. The Board, by majority agreement, will appoint all committee chairs, except as specified by the By-Laws.

Conflict of Interest and Compensation

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Article IV, Section 5: The Board of Directors shall elect the Officers of OEVA who shall serve without compensation. An Officer or Director may be removed from office for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Board providing for their removal, and/or expulsion of them as provided in Article III Section 5 (page 2).

Article IV, Section 12: The Board may engage such agents or parties as it may deem necessary to assist it in the administration and management of OEVA, and shall develop and maintain a Conflict of Interest and Human Resources policies consistent with law and best practices applicable to its industry.

Article IV, Section 15: Directors shall not be entitled to compensation, nor personally liable for monetary damages to any person for any statement, vote or decision unless (a) the Director breached or failed to perform his duties as a Director and (b) the breach or failure to perform is (1) a criminal offense (unless the Director had reasonable cause to believe the conduct was lawful), (2) a transaction from which the Director received improper personal benefit, or (3) reckless or the act was committed in bad faith or with a malicious purpose.

Conflict of Interest and Compensation: Policy and Procedure

The purpose of the conflict of interest policy is to protect this tax-exempt organization's interest when it is contemplating entering into a transaction or arrangement that might benefit the private interest of an Officer or Director of the Association or might result in a possible excess benefit transaction. This policy is intended to supplement but not replace any applicable state and federal laws governing conflict of interest applicable to nonprofit and charitable organizations.

Definitions

- a. Interested Person, any director, principal officer, or member of a committee with governing board delegated powers, who has a direct or indirect financial interest, as defined below, is an interested person.
- b. Financial Interest, A person has a financial interest if the person has, directly or indirectly, through business, investment, or family:
 1. An ownership or investment interest in any entity with which the Association has a transaction or arrangement.
 2. A compensation arrangement with the Association or with any entity or individual with which the Association has a transaction or arrangement.
 3. A potential ownership or investment interest in, or compensation arrangement with, any entity or individual with which the Association is negotiating a transaction or arrangement.

Compensation includes direct and indirect remuneration as well as gifts or favors that are not insubstantial. A financial interest is not necessarily a conflict of interest. A person who has a financial interest may have a conflict of interest only if the appropriate governing board or committee decides that a conflict of interest exists.

Procedures

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

- a. **Duty to Disclose.** In connection with any actual or possible conflict of interest, an interested person must disclose the existence of the financial interest and be given the opportunity to disclose all material facts to the directors and members of committees with governing board delegated powers considering the proposed transaction or arrangement.
- b. **Determining Whether a Conflict of Interest Exists.** After disclosure of the financial interest and all material facts, and after any discussion with the interested person, he/she shall leave the governing board or committee meeting while the determination of a conflict of interest is discussed and voted upon. The remaining board or committee members shall decide if a conflict of interest exists.
- c. **Procedures for Addressing the Conflict of Interest:**
 1. An interested person may make a presentation at the governing board or committee meeting, but after the presentation, he/she shall leave the meeting during the discussion of, and the vote on, the transaction or arrangement involving the possible conflict of interest.
 2. The chairperson of the governing board or committee shall, if appropriate, appoint a disinterested person or committee to investigate alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement.
 3. After exercising due diligence, the governing board or committee shall determine whether the Association can obtain with reasonable efforts a more advantageous transaction or arrangement from a person or entity that would not give rise to a conflict of interest.
 4. If a more advantageous transaction or arrangement is not reasonably possible under circumstances not producing a conflict of interest, the governing board or committee shall determine by a majority vote of the disinterested directors whether the transaction or arrangement is in the Association's best interest, for its own benefit, and whether it is fair and reasonable. In conformity with the above determination it shall make its decision as to whether to enter into the transaction or arrangement.

Violations of the Conflicts of Interest Policy

1. If the governing board or committee has reasonable cause to believe a member has failed to disclose actual or possible conflicts of interest, it shall inform the member of the basis for such belief and afford the member an opportunity to explain the alleged failure to disclose.
2. If, after hearing the member's response and after making further investigation as warranted by the circumstances, the governing board or committee determines the member has failed to disclose an actual or possible conflict of interest, it shall take appropriate disciplinary and corrective action.

Records of Proceedings

Article IV, Section 1: The administration and management of OEVA shall be vested in the Board of Directors and its Officers. All Officers and Directors shall have a fiduciary relationship to its members. OEVA shall maintain such accounts and records as are necessary and prudent in accordance with good business standards. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves. OEVA, through its Officers and Directors, shall maintain its status as a not for profit corporation under the laws of the State of Florida and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code. The Officers and

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Directors, in performance of their duties, shall cause to be maintained a record of all receipts and expenditures, and an account reflecting the name, address and current membership status of each Member.

Article V, Section 3: The Secretary shall attend and keep the minutes of all meetings. The Secretary shall have charge of OEVA records and papers and shall perform all other duties normally incident to such office. In the absence or disability of the Secretary, the duties may be performed by the Executive Assistant, Assistant Secretary or another officer or director.

Article V, Section 4: The Treasurer shall have custody of the funds of OEVA and shall keep regular books and accounts. The Treasurer shall have custody of vouchers, receipts, records, and other papers normally incident to such office or assign them to be kept with the bookkeeper or accountant. In the absence or disability of the Treasurer, the duties may be performed by an Assistant Treasurer or another officer or director.

Article VI, Section 1: OEVA shall maintain records according to good accounting practices which shall be open to inspection at reasonable times in accordance with law and pursuant to rules established by the Board. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves.

Article V1, Section 2: OEVA shall disclose financial and other records, information and data to the extent required by state and federal law and shall develop and maintain Privacy Policies and Transparency Policies consistent with law and best practices applicable to its industry.

Records of Proceedings: Policy and Procedure

The minutes of the governing board and all committees with board delegated powers shall contain:

- a. The names of the persons who disclosed or otherwise were found to have a financial interest in connection with an actual or possible conflict of interest, the nature of the financial interest, any action taken to determine whether a conflict of interest was present, and the governing boards or committee's decision as to whether a conflict of interest in fact existed.
- b. The names of the persons who were present for discussions and votes relating to the transaction or arrangement, the content of the discussion, including any alternatives to the proposed transaction or arrangement, and a record of any votes taken in connection with the proceedings.

Each director, principal officer, and member of a committee with governing board delegated powers shall annually sign a statement which affirms such person:

- a. Has received a copy of the conflicts of interest policy,
- b. Has read and understands the policy,
- c. Has agreed to comply with the policy, and
- d. Understands the Association is charitable and in order to maintain its federal tax exemption it must engage primarily in activities which accomplish one or more of its tax-exempt purposes.

Compensation

Article 4, Section 5: The Board of Directors shall elect the Officers of OEVA who shall serve without

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

compensation. An Officer or Director may be removed from office for such cause (if any) pursuant to rules and procedures adopted by the Board providing for their removal, and/or expulsion of them as provided in Article III Section 5 (page 2).

Compensation: Policy and Procedure

No part of the net earnings of the corporation shall inure to the benefit of any member, Director, Officer of the corporation, or any private individual (except that reasonable compensation may be paid for services rendered to or for the corporation affecting one or more of its purposes), and no member, Director, Officer of the corporation, or any private individual shall be entitled to share in the distribution of any of the corporate assets on dissolution of the corporation.

- a. A voting member of the governing board who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Association for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- b. A voting member of any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Organization for services is precluded from voting on matters pertaining to that member's compensation.
- c. No voting member of the governing board or any committee whose jurisdiction includes compensation matters and who receives compensation, directly or indirectly, from the Association, either individually or collectively, is prohibited from providing information to any committee regarding compensation.

By-Laws Periodic Reviews: By-Laws

Article II, Section 1: The purpose of OEVA is to facilitate the civil betterment of the greater Old Englewood Village neighborhood (as defined in Article I Section 3 above) through community revitalization and beautification including (but not limited to) efforts to enhance economic, business, civic, social, cultural, and recreational services that will benefit businesses and residents of the neighborhood (and surrounding communities and neighborhoods); and for such other civic, charitable, scientific, literary, or educational purposes as OEVA may from time to time deem appropriate, consistent with the corporation's tax exempt status (see Article VII at pages 6-7 infra concerning tax status).

Periodic Reviews: Policy and Procedure

To ensure the Association operates in a manner consistent with charitable purposes and does not engage in activities that could jeopardize its tax-exempt status, periodic reviews shall be conducted. The periodic reviews shall, at a minimum, include the following subjects:

- a. Whether compensation arrangements and benefits are reasonable, based on competent survey information, and the result of arm's length bargaining.
- b. Whether partnerships, joint ventures, and arrangements with management organizations conform to the Association's written policies, are properly recorded, reflect reasonable investment or payments for goods and services, further charitable purposes and do not result in inurement, impermissible private benefit or in an excess benefit transaction.

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Use of Outside Experts: By-Laws

Article IV, Section 12: The Board may engage such agents or parties as it may deem necessary to assist it in the administration and management of OEVA, and shall develop and maintain a Conflict of Interest and Human Resources policies consistent with law and best practices applicable to its industry.

Use of Outside Experts: Policy and Procedure

When conducting the periodic reviews as provided for in this Article, the Association may, but need not, use outside advisors. If outside experts are used, their use shall not relieve the governing board of its responsibility for ensuring periodic reviews are conducted.

Indemnification

Article IV, Section 15: Directors shall not be entitled to compensation, nor personally liable for monetary damages to any person for any statement, vote or decision unless (a) the Director breached or failed to perform his duties as a Director and (b) the breach or failure to perform is (1) a criminal offense (unless the Director had reasonable cause to believe the conduct was lawful), (2) a transaction from which the Director received improper personal benefit, or (3) reckless or the act was committed in bad faith or with a malicious purpose.

Indemnification: Policy and Procedure

To the full extent authorized under the laws of the State of Florida, the corporation shall indemnify any director, officer, employee, or agent, or former member, director, officer, employee, or agent of the corporation, or any person who may have served at the corporation's request as a director or officer of another corporation (each of the foregoing members, directors, officers, employees, agents, and persons is referred to in this Article individually as an "indemnitee"), against expenses actually and necessarily incurred by such indemnitee in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which that indemnitee is made a party by reason of being or having been such member, director, officer, employee, or agent, except in relation to matters as to which that indemnitee shall have been adjudged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable for negligence or misconduct in the performance of a duty. The foregoing indemnification shall not be deemed exclusive of any other rights to which an indemnitee may be entitled under any bylaw, agreement, resolution of the Board of Directors, or otherwise.

Expenses

Article VI, Section 1: OEVA shall maintain records according to good accounting practices which shall be open to inspection at reasonable times in accordance with law and pursuant to rules established by the Board. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves.

Expenses: Policy and Procedure

Expenses (including reasonable attorneys' fees) incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit, or proceeding, if authorized by the Board of Directors, upon receipt of an undertaking by or on

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

behalf of the indemnitee to repay such amount if it shall ultimately be determined that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified hereunder.

Insurance

Article IV, Section 1: The administration and management of OEVA shall be vested in the Board of Directors and its Officers. All Officers and Directors shall have a fiduciary relationship to its members. OEVA shall maintain such accounts and records as are necessary and prudent in accordance with good business standards. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves. OEVA, through its Officers and Directors, shall maintain its status as a not for profit corporation under the laws of the State of Florida and the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Code. The Officers and Directors, in performance of their duties, shall cause to be maintained a record of all receipts and expenditures, and an account reflecting the name, address and current membership status of each Member.

Insurance: Policy and Procedure

The corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a member, director, officer, employee, or agent against any liability asserted against such person and incurred by such person in any such capacity or arising out of such person's status as such, whether or not the corporation would have the power or obligation to indemnify such person against such liability under this Article.

Books and Records

Article VI, Section 1: OEVA shall maintain records according to good accounting practices which shall be open to inspection at reasonable times in accordance with law and pursuant to rules established by the Board. OEVA shall account for funds (and other things of value) received by OEVA and the expenditure thereof for the benefit of the community which it serves.

Article VI, Section 2: OEVA shall disclose financial and other records, information and data to the extent required by state and federal law and shall develop and maintain Privacy Policies and Transparency Policies consistent with law and best practices applicable to its industry.

Article IV, Section 10: The Board of Directors shall deposit the funds of OEVA in such financial institutions as it may from time to time direct, and withdrawal of such funds shall be by a person or persons as the Board of Directors may direct.

Article IV, Section 11: Minutes of all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be kept and shall be available for inspection by members of the Board and OEVA at all reasonable times. Minutes of the Board shall be retained for a period of not less than seven (7) years.

Article IV, Section 12: The Board may engage such agents or parties as it may deem necessary to assist it in the administration and management of OEVA, and shall develop and maintain a Conflict of Interest and Human Resources policies consistent with law and best practices applicable to its industry.

Article IV, Section 13: The fiscal year of OEVA shall be from January 1 through December 31.

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

Books and Records: Policy and Procedure

The corporation shall keep complete books and records of account and minutes of the proceedings of the Board of Directors.

Articles of Incorporation

Article 5, Section 5: Each of the officers above described shall, in addition to the powers and duties conferred upon them herein, have all the powers, authorities, and responsibilities as are designated to officers of a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida.

Articles of Incorporation: Policy and Procedure

The Articles of Incorporation may be amended in any manner at any regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors, provided that specific written notice of the proposed amendment of the Articles setting forth the proposed amendment or a summary of the changes to be effected thereby shall be given to each director at least three (3) days in advance of such a meeting if delivered personally, by facsimile, or by e-mail or at least five (5) days if delivered by mail. As required by the Articles, any amendment shall require the affirmative vote of a majority of directors' present at any regular meeting or special meeting called for the purpose upon at least thirty (30) days written notice.

By-laws

Article IV, Section 9, (A) Executive Committee. Comprised of the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer, which may exercise the powers of the Board (except for the power to amend these By-Laws), subject to the direction and control of the full Board, in the intervals between regular meetings of the Board.

Bylaws: Policy and Procedure

The Board of Directors may amend these Bylaws by majority vote at any regular or special meeting. Written notice setting forth the proposed amendment or summary of the changes to be affected thereby shall be given to each director within the time and the manner provided for the giving of notice of meetings of directors.

Dissolution

Article VII, Section 3: Upon the event of dissolution of OEVA, after paying or making adequate provision for the payment of debts and obligations of the corporation, the remaining assets shall be distributed for one or more exempt purposes within the meaning of and as required by section 501(c) of the IRS Code (or corresponding section of any future provisions of the Code), or shall be distributed to the federal government, or to a state or local government, for a public purpose. Any such assets not so disposed of shall be disposed of by a Court of Competent Jurisdiction of the county in which the principal office of the corporation is then located, exclusively for such purposes or to such organization or organizations, as said Court shall determine, which are organized and operated exclusively for such purposes.

Dissolution: Policy and Procedure

Upon the dissolution of the corporation or the winding up of its affairs, after providing for the payment of all obligations, the remaining assets of the corporation shall be distributed exclusively to charitable, scientific, literary, or educational organizations within the Englewood Village community of Sarasota

Policy and Procedures of the Old Englewood Village Association, Inc.

County Florida as designated by the Board of Directors.

Tax Exempt Status

Article VII, Section 4: No part of OEVA's net earnings shall inure to any member or director. OEVA is a tax-exempt organization provided by the Federal Tax Law or as may be hereafter amended. Any provision of these By-Laws which would cause OEVA not to continue to qualify for such tax-exempt status shall be null and void and shall yield to the overriding intention herein expressed. In all respects, the Officers and Directors of OEVA shall take care to avoid transactions and conduct that may jeopardize its tax-exempt status, or cause OEVA to incur liability for excise or other taxes for engaging in non-exempt transactions.